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DESCRIDE THE FRESEMT AND CGRIGINAL (If known} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Glebe Church lies above the west fork of Bemnett's Creek about
half a mile east of Driver on Route 337 in Nansemond County. The brick
rectangular building is covered by a nineteenth century gable roof with
wooden pedimented gable ends, and measures 48'6" X 25'4", A modern one-
story gable roof addition adjoins the church on the noxrth by a breezeway,
and a small vesting room made from the bricks of an early but not original
north wing has been added on the west. The church's east-west orientation
has been changed; the chancel is now in the west end. The walls are laid
in Flemish bond with glazed headers above the bevelled water table and
English bond below. Rubbed brick suggests quoins at the corners and marks
jambs of windows. The windows are topped with brick segmental arches, and
are fitted with nineteenth century colored glass. Queen closers are
employed at the cormers, but oceur irregularly at the windows and doorways.
There has been extensive repair and repointing of the walls, due in part to
the removal of the north wing in 1856. The windows and docorways have been
altered frequently, but at present there are three windows on the south, two
on the north and one small window high in the west wall. The large windows
have been lowered at the sills. A segmental arch surmounts the marble
plaque and lintel over the east doorway. The north doorway and the doorway
! into the vesting room are twentieth century features. The church's
interior retains no original fabric. At present the raised chancel lies in
the west end of the building with a door to the vesting room opening behind
the Gothic altar screen, A small vestibule with a room on either side and
divided from the sanctuary by a tongue-and-groove partition is located under
the gallery in the east end. The walls and the segmentally arched ceiling
are panelled with diagonal tongue-and-groove board. There is graining on
the west door frame and marbelizing on the baseboard. '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Seventeenth Century Nansemond County was divided into three parishes.
The predecessor of the present Glebe Church, built around 1643, was the
parish church of the Fast or Lower Parish. Lower Parish and Chuckatuck
Parish were united into Suffolk Parish in 1725, as they could not continue
to support separate ministries and vestries. '

On account of dissension within the parish, it was necessary to take
the matter of a nmew church in the former Lower Parish area to the Virginia
Council.  The Council in 1737 decided that because of "... the ruinous
condition of the Church built... in the part formerly called the lower
parish," it was '"...Resolved and Agreed to build a new Brick Church....'
The new church, the present Glebe Church, was erected in 1737-1738, and
apparently was regarded as the parish church of Suffolk Parish, and was
originally known as Bennett's Creek Church. In 1759, the church was
enlarged by the addition of a north wing. The church was also outfitted
with a north gallery as well as with a private hanging pew in the southeast

At the beginning of the Revolutionary War, the congregation, when
confronted by the Reverend John Agnew with the sin of disloyalty, ordered
‘the minister to leave the pulpit and never return. Agnew left and later
became the regimental chaplain of the Queen's Rangers.

After the Disestablishment, Bennett's Creek Church retained its glebe
lands on the grounds that they had been a private donation te the church
and not purchased by the vestry. Since that time, it has been known as
Glebe Church. The three hundred acre glebe on the east side of the
Nansemond River 1s still church property, and the income from it is shared
by Glebe and nearby Chuckatuck (St. John's) Churches. The abandoned churcl
was in ruins until 1856, when the north wing was removed and the brick used
to repair the building and to add the vesting room. The church was re-
oriented at this time, and a gallery added in the east. -

Glebe Church survives as one of two colonial churches remaining in
Nansemond County. Because it retains its original Glebe lands, the
church is an .important historic rarity.  Although altered, the building is
noted for its fine colonial brickwork.
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